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VISION

Creating Investment Solutions within

everyone’s reach




Mission
&

Core Values

To create a conducive working enviroment, to attract the best talent i
the Asset Management Sector. ABLAMC strives to be th
choice' for young and experienced talent.

To set the highest industry standards in terms of produc
innovations, in order to offer products for clients of all de
To adhere to the highest industry standard for integrity a
across all the spheres of the company.
To use technology and financial structuring to serve as a "
compared to the competition.

To enhance Stakeholders Value.
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The Board of Directors of ABL Asset Management Company Limited, the management company of ABL Voluntary
Pension Scheme (ABL-VPS), ), is pleased to present the Audited Financial Statements of ABL Voluntary Pension
Scheme for the year ended on June 30, 2022.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Pakistan's economy recovered from pandemic and maintained the V-shaped growth by posting real GDP growth
of 5.97% in FY22 against the revised GDP growth of 5.37% in previous year. All three sectors (Agriculture,
Services and Manufacturing) have contributed in this growth trajectory. Agriculture sector showed remarkable
growth of 4.40% and surpassed the target of 3.5% and last year growth of 3.48%. This growth can be attributed
to high yield of crops, better output prices, and agriculture credit. This high growth, however, is unsustainable and
resulted in macroeconomic imbalances. Historically, economy had shown the 'boom-bust' growth cycles. The
reason for such volatile growth cycles include the wide ranging economic challenges like twin deficits, pressure

on exchange rate, inflation, energy sector bottlenecks, and the absence of supportive environment for the private
sector.
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During the FY22, the average inflation inched up 12.09%YoY against the 8.90%YOY in SPLY. Price increase was
seen across many sectors, including transport, Housing, and Food. The pressure on headline inflation can fairly
be attributed to adjustment in prices of electricity, gas, exchange rate depreciation along with rapid increase in
global fuel and commodity prices. Going forward we anticipate that full year inflation would remain in double
digits. This thesis is premised on higher petroleum prices backed by political instability and decline in exchange

rate parity. On the monetary front, the State Bank Pakistan (SBP) may continue monetary tightening by increasing
policy rate.

On the balance of payment front, the country posted cumulative deficit of USD 15.20bn against the deficit of USD
1.18bn in the SPLY. The primary reason behind this was trade deficit as exports surged by 25% while the imports
swelled by 36% to close the period at USD 36bn and USD 76bn respectively during the FY22. Remittance has
been increased by 6% to clock in at USD 31bn. This increase could be attributed to declining transactions through
illegal channels due to government crackdown. Foreign exchange reserves of country stood at USD 9.7bn as of
June 30, 2022 providing total import cover of ~ 2 months.

ABL ..
MUSTAWBIL

PENSION FUND AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential
Page 04




On the fiscal side, tax collection has reached ~PKR 6.25tr during FY22.
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MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY REVIEW

Total assets under management (AUMs) of the open-end mutual fund industry posted a growth of 18.5% during
FY22 (from PKR 1073 billion to PKR 1274 billion), mainly on account of substantial flows in money market and
fixed income funds due to rising interest rates, alongside rising T-bills and PIBs yields. Equity market funds,
including Conventional and Islamic, witnessed a decline of 25% to close the period at PKR 183 billion. Although,
the total money market and fixed income funds' AUMs increased by 44% and 21% to PKR 682 billion and PKR
298 billion, respectively.

EQUITY MARKET REVIEW

During FY22, KSE-100 index showed a weary performance, posting a decline of ~12.28%YoY, and closed at
41,540 points. This decline of the KSE-100 index in FY22 was specifically on the back of change in political
leadership of country and rising inflation exacerbated by the commodity super cycle. Furthermore, delay in approval
of IMF's sixth and seventh review increased pressure on the external account. It led to depletion of foreign exchange
reserves as well with PKR depreciating against USD and PKR touching an all-time low of 211/USD in Jun'22.
The start of Ukraine-Russia war in February took the international commodities to their all-time high. This resulted
in higher inflation in the global as well as national economy and oil prices touching their 14-yr high levels
internationally. However, on the positive side the country received the highest ever home remittance inflows of
USD31.24bn in the said fiscal year, posting an increase of around 6.1% YOY basis.

Average traded volume decreased by ~56%YoY while the value decreased by ~57%YoY to ~115 million and
~USD 36 million, respectively. Foreigners sold worth ~USD 297 million shares during the said period. On the
local front, individuals, companies, and banks remained on the forefront with a net buying of worth ~USD 157
million, ~USD 111 million, and ~USD 115 million, respectively.

Sectors contributing to the index strength were fertilizer, and chemicals adding 777, and 501 points, respectively.
On the flip side, cement, and technology sectors negatively impacted the index subtracting 2,359 and 945 points,
respectively.

Going forward, we believe the direction of the market will be determined by the inflation scenario set by the
international commodity prices and approval of IMF 7th and 8th review which will lead to improved forex reserves
and simultaneously improved performance in the stock markets.
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MONEY MARKET REVIEW

As economies recovered from Covid-19, growth in demand outpaced growth in supply which resulted in a sharp
increase in prices. Russian - Ukraine war further disrupted energy and grain supply chain leaving economies in a
commodity super cycle with crude oil topping at USD 120/barrel. Pakistan being an importer of both energy and
grain got stuck in the middle of the crisis with inflation hitting an all-time high of 21.3% in June'22. Increasing
pressure on the foreign exchange reserves because of rising current account deficit resulted in a prompt response
by the State Bank which led to an increase in policy rate by 675bps taking it to 13.75% and depreciation of the
Pak Rupee against the US Dollar by more than 30% during the FY"22.

Secondary market yields of shorter term government securities remained highly volatile throughout the year where
the 3M T-bill yields increased from 7.26% to 15.23%, 6M T-bill yields increased from 7.54% to 14.80% and 12M
T-bill yields increased from 7.60% to 14.95%. Difference between the policy rate and secondary market yields
widened to more than 150bps and remained wide consistently throughout the year. Government of Pakistan ended
up borrowing a total of PKR 16,118.8 Billion during the FY"22.

Secondary market yields of longer tenor government securities also remained volatile. 3Y PIB yields increased
from 8.69% to 13.97%, 5Y PIB yields increased from 9.20% to 13.18% and 10Y PIB yields increased from 10.40%
to 13.15%. Government of Pakistan ended up borrowing a total of PKR 1,685.7 Billion during the FY"22. During
the year SBP introduced longer tenor OMOs of 63 days in order to calm the uncertainty in the market which
assisted in bringing secondary market yields down. During the year SBP announced a total of 92 OMO injections
and ended up injecting a total of PKR 3,953.7 Billion.

FUND PERFORMANCE

Our VPS is systematically classified into 3 sub fund categories based on the risk appetite of our long-term investors
i.e. ("Debt Sub fund", "Money Market Sub Fund" & "Equity Sub Fund".

Debt Sub Fund

Debt Sub fund posted a YTD return of 7.29%. The fund was invested 62.43% in T-bills, 9.59% in Corporate Sukuk
and 27.65% in Cash at the end of June'22.

Money Market Sub Fund

Money market sub fund generated a YTD return of 7.54%. At Jun'22, fund had 76.01% exposure in T-bills while
cash at bank stood at 23.72%.

Equity Sub Fund

The fund posted a return of -16.07% during the year under review. PF-ESF was invested 90.66% in equities at
30th June'22. Major exposure of the fund was in Oil and Gass Exploration companies at 23.50% and Commercial
Banks at 20.70%.

AUDITORS

M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. (Chartered Accountants), have been re-appointed as auditors for the year
ending June 30, 2023 for ABL Pension Fund (ABL-PF).

AABL Asset Management
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MANAGEMENT QUALITY RATING

On December 31, 2021: VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has reaffirmed the Management Quality Rating
(MQR) of ABL Asset Management Company (ABL AMC) at '"AM2++' (AM-Two-Double Plus). Outlook on the
assigned rating is 'Positive'.

OUTLOOK
Equity:

In the short-run equity market is expected to remain under pressure amid political and economic concerns. Political
stability either through (1) early general elections or (2) current government will provide clarity to economic
reforms where the former will be better that will bring mid-term clarity. On the economic front, IHFY23 will
remain very concerning in terms of (1) high inflation (18-20% in FY23), (2) external funding risk and (3) elevated
fixed income yields. We expect, economic recovery from 2HFY23 and onwards. Thus, inflation will sharply fall
to 6-7% in FY24 and we expect monetary easing from 4QFY23 that will result in early equity market run-up in
2HFY23/FY24.

The recent drop of KSE-100 by 7%/12% CYTD/FYTD has further discounted equity market that is trading at an
attractive PE multiple of ~4. We recommend high dividend yielding stocks and energy reforms based companies.
In the short-run we recommend underweighting to cyclical sectors. Banks, EnPs, OMCs, fertilizer are our preferred
plays, while auto will be impact by production concerns/expansionary cycle that will hurt margins, in our view.

Money Market:

Going forward inflation is expected to remain on the higher side, although global food prices have started to cool
down, therefore we expect the policy rate to remain in the range of 15% to 16%. We expect the inversion in the
yield curve to sustain in the near future therefore the strategy would be to trade T-bills actively while taking
maximum advantage of any mispricing along the short to medium terms portion of the yield curve. In addition
to this the fund will keep investing in high yield instruments with a tenor of 3-6 months and place funds at special
deposit rates offered by banks at quarter and year ends.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
We thank our valued investors who have placed their confidence in us. The Board is also thankful to Securities
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Trustee (Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited) and the

management of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their continued guidance and support. The Directors also
appreciate the efforts put in by the management team.

For & on behalf of the Board

DWM 7

Director Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
Lahore, August 24, 2022 Chief Executive Officer
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OBJECTIVE
To provide a secure source of savings and regular income after retirement to the Participants.
EQUITY MARKET OVERVIEW

During FY22, KSE-100 index showed a weary performance, posting a decline of ~12.28%Y0Y, and closed at
41,540 points. This decline of the KSE-100 index in FY22 was specifically on the back of change in political
leadership of country and rising inflation exacerbated by the commodity super cycle. Furthermore, delay in approval
of IMF's sixth and seventh review increased pressure on the external account. It led to depletion of foreign exchange
reserves as well with PKR depreciating against USD and PKR touching an all-time low of 211/USD in Jun'22.
The start of Ukraine-Russia war in February took the international commodities to their all-time high. This resulted
in higher inflation in the global as well as national economy and oil prices touching their 14-yr high levels
internationally. However, on the positive side the country received the highest ever home remittance inflows of
USD31.24bn in the said fiscal year, posting an increase of around 6.1% YOY basis.

Average traded volume decreased by ~56%YoY while the value decreased by ~57%YoY to ~115 million and
~USD 36 million, respectively. Foreigners sold worth ~USD 297 million shares during the said period. On the
local front, individuals, companies, and banks remained on the forefront with a net buying of worth ~USD 157
million, ~USD 111 million, and ~USD 115 million, respectively.

Sectors contributing to the index strength were fertilizer, and chemicals adding 777, and 501 points, respectively.
On the flip side, cement, and technology sectors negatively impacted the index subtracting 2,359 and 945 points,
respectively.

Going forward, we believe the direction of the market will be determined by the inflation scenario set by the
international commodity prices and approval of IMF 7th and 8th review which will lead to improved forex reserves
and simultaneously improved performance in the stock markets.

MONEY MARKET REVIEW

As economies recovered from Covid-19, growth in demand outpaced growth in supply which resulted in a sharp
increase in prices. Russian - Ukraine war further disrupted energy and grain supply chain leaving economies in a
commodity super cycle with crude oil topping at USD 120/barrel. Pakistan being an importer of both energy and
grain got stuck in the middle of the crisis with inflation hitting an all-time high of 21.3% in June'22. Increasing
pressure on the foreign exchange reserves because of rising current account deficit resulted in a prompt response
by the State Bank which led to an increase in policy rate by 675bps taking it to 13.75% and depreciation of the
Pak Rupee against the US Dollar by more than 30% during the FY"22.

Secondary market yields of shorter term government securities remained highly volatile throughout the year where
the 3M T-bill yields increased from 7.26% to 15.23%, 6M T-bill yields increased from 7.54% to 14.80% and 12M
T-bill yields increased from 7.60% to 14.95%. Difference between the policy rate and secondary market yields
widened to more than 150bps and remained wide consistently throughout the year. Government of Pakistan ended
up borrowing a total of PKR 16,118.8 Billion during the FY"22.

Secondary market yields of longer tenor government securities also remained volatile. 3Y PIB yields increased
from 8.69% to 13.97%, 5Y PIB yields increased from 9.20% to 13.18% and 10Y PIB yields increased from 10.40%
to 13.15%. Government of Pakistan ended up borrowing a total of PKR 1,685.7 Billion during the FY'22. During
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the year SBP introduced longer tenor OMOs of 63 days in order to calm the uncertainty in the market which
assisted in bringing secondary market yields down. During the year SBP announced a total of 92 OMO injections
and ended up injecting a total of PKR 3,953.7 Billion.

FUND PERFORMANCE

Our VPS is systematically classified into 3 sub fund categories based on the risk appetite of our long-term investors
i.e. ("Debt Sub fund", "Money Market Sub Fund" & "Equity Sub Fund".

Debt Sub Fund

Debt Sub fund posted a YTD return of 7.29%. The fund was invested 62.43% in T-bills, 9.59% in Corporate Sukuk
and 27.65% in Cash at the end of June'22.

Money Market Sub Fund

Money market sub fund generated a YTD return of 7.54%. At Jun22, fund had 76.01% exposure in T-bills while
cash at bank stood at 23.72%.

Equity Sub Fund
The fund posted a return of -16.07% during the year under review. PF-ESF was invested 90.66% in equities at

30th June'22. Major exposure of the fund was in Oil and Gass Exploration companies at 23.50% and Commercial
Banks at 20.70%.
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OUTLOOK
Equity:

In the short-run equity market is expected to remain under pressure amid political and economic concerns. Political
stability either through (1) early general elections or (2) current government will provide clarity to economic
reforms where the former will be better that will bring mid-term clarity. On the economic front, IHFY23 will
remain very concerning in terms of (1) high inflation (18-20% in FY23), (2) external funding risk and (3) elevated
fixed income yields. We expect, economic recovery from 2HFY23 and onwards. Thus, inflation will sharply fall
to 6-7% in FY24 and we expect monetary easing from 4QFY23 that will result in early equity market run-up in
2HFY23/FY24.
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The recent drop of KSE-100 by 7%/12% CYTD/FYTD has further discounted equity market that is trading at an
attractive PE multiple of ~4. We recommend high dividend yielding stocks and energy reforms based companies.
In the short-run we recommend underweighting to cyclical sectors. Banks, EnPs, OMCs, fertilizer are our preferred
plays, while auto will be impact by production concerns/expansionary cycle that will hurt margins, in our view.

Money Market:

Going forward inflation is expected to remain on the higher side, although global food prices have started to cool
down, therefore we expect the policy rate to remain in the range of 15% to 16%. We expect the inversion in the
yield curve to sustain in the near future therefore the strategy would be to trade T-bills actively while taking
maximum advantage of any mispricing along the short to medium terms portion of the yield curve. In addition
to this the fund will keep investing in high yield instruments with a tenor of 3-6 months and place funds at special
deposit rates offered by banks at quarter and year ends.
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Equity Sub Fund

| Particulars [ 2022 | 2021 [ 2020 2009 | 2018 |
Rupees in '000
Net (loss) / income (21,757) 44,336 (4,010) (19,922) (18,846)
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (16,383) 34,553 (447) (8,747) (8,287)
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on
re-measurement of investments classified as
'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss'-net (10,964) 6,398 (6,155) (13,748) (13,107)
Dividend income 9,064 6,441 4,265 4,432 4,335
Financial income 504 405 790 436 438
Net asset value per unit as at June 30 149.9948 178.7160 126.3406 126.5918 156.5757
Total Net Assets as at June 30 100,403 162,449 99,611 83,510 101,377
Total contributions received - Gross 8,326 41,110 33,318 11,766 24,709
Lowest issue price of units issued during the year 146.3139 128.8342 99.0390 123.9232 146.6381
Highest issue price of units issued during the year 183.3999 187.5182 163.9643 163.4945 186.9731
Debt Sub Fund
| Particulars [ 2022 [ 2021 | 2020 2009 | 2018 |
Rupees in '000:
Net income 11,202 5,836 14,274 5,454 2,859
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (798) (1,736) 1,082 284 (111)
Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on
re-measurement of investments classified as
'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss'-net 216 10 2,851 (615) (140)
Financial income 14,962 9,866 12,545 7,468 4,859
Net asset value per unit as at June 30 200.6993 187.0593 177.7520 153.7829 143.3484
Total Net Assets as at June 30 151,466 144,358 123,321 84,105 77,125
Total contributions received - Gross 42,296 51,285 38,311 12,350 13,042
Lowest issue price of units issued during the year 186.4536 177.5660 153.9228 143.1829 138.2104
Highest issue price of units issued during the year 200.6993 187.0593 177.8069 153.7829 143.3484
Money Market Sub Fund
| Particulars [ 2022 [ 2021 | 2020 2009 [ 2018 |
Rupees in '000
Net income 10,681 5,879 12,157 4,824 1,957
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net %) (275) 1,029 (24) 46
Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on
re-measurement of investments classified as
'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss'-net 22 14 540 %) (1)
Financial income 13,590 8,498 14,393 6,285 3,139
Net asset value per unit as at June 30 160.9915 149.7020 142.4115 127.1692 118.3073
Total Net Assets as at June 30 159,570 131,065 116,062 80,430 55,551
Total contributions received - Gross 59,491 57,614 50,579 24,848 13,799
Lowest issue price of units issued during the year 149.6582 130.4026 127.2548 117.0433 113.9265
Highest issue price of units issued during the year 160.9915 149.7020 142.4115 127.1692 118.3073
ABL v
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B
S.M.C.H.5., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.
Tel:(92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com

Email: info@cdcpak.com

368

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS
ABL PENSION FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 67D (viii) of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of ABL Pension Fund
(the Fund) are of the opinion that ABL Asset Management Company Limited being the Pension
Fund Manager of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended
June 30, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of the constitutive documents of the Fund, the
Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008.

W)
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 30, 2022
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/7‘:’:/’ :'I‘-\ Crowe Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

25-E, Main Market, Gulberg Il
Lahore-54600, Pakistan

Main +92-42-3575 9223-5
www.crowe.pk

AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS OF ABL PENSION FUND

We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising:

1) Statement of Assets and Liabilities;

2) Income Statement;

3) Cash Flow Statement; and

4) Statement of Movement in Participants’ Sub-Fund

of ABL Pension Fund (the Fund) as at and for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with the notes to and
forming part thereof for the year then ended.

1t is the responsibility of the Pension Fund Manager to establish and maintain a system of internal control and
prepare and present the financial statements of the Fund in conformity with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a) The financial statements prepared for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been properly drawn in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the trust deed and the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 including the
guidelines thereunder;

b) A true and fair view is given of the disposition of the Fund as at June 30, 2022 and of the transactions of the
Fund for the year then ended;

c) The allocation and reallocation of units of the sub-funds for all the participants have been made according to
the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005;

d) The cost and expenses debited to the Fund and apportionment of expenses between sub-funds are as
specified in the constitutive documents of the Fund;

e) Proper books and records have been kept by the Fund and the financial statements prepared are in agreement
with the Fund’s books and records;

f) We were able to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of the audit; and

g) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2021, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statem n September 28, 2021.

Lahore ROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CoO.
Dated: September 21, 2022 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202210051S8fHL9317 (Engagement Partner: Amin Ali)

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss vereln. Each member fim of Crowe Global ks a separate and indepandent legal entity. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. and
s affiiiates are not responsible or labla for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other membar of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any prolessional senices and does not

have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

© 2022 Crowe Hussaln Chaudhury & Co.
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ABL PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022
Note 2022
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub Money
quity Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------mmmmmmmmmmmmmeeeeeen

Assets
Bank balances 4 5,129 41,955 37,989 85,073
Investments 5 93,267 109,543 121,749 324,559
Dividend and interest receivable 6 22 180 146 348
Deposits and other receivables 7 2,656 412 295 3,363
Receivable against sale of investments 3 - - 3
Total Assets 101,077 152,090 160,179 413,346
Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company

Limited - Pension Fund Manager 8 380 453 441 1,274
Payable to Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited - Trustee 9 14 20 22 56
Payable to the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10 52 59 54 165
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 228 92 92 412
Total Liabilities 674 624 609 1,907
Net Assets 100,403 151,466 159,570 411,439
Participants' sub - funds

(as per statement attached) 100,403 151,466 159,570 411,439
Contingencies and Commitments 2 NUMDber Of Uifs —-mooeeeeeemmemeee
Number of Units in Issue 13 669,378 754,689 991,169

Rupees
Net Asset Value per Unit 149.9948 200.6993 160.9915
The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)
DW@ 7
Sa(‘iib Matin Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
ABL I
USTHQ ".. AABL Asset Management
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ABL PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Assets
Bank balances
Investments
Dividend and interest receivable
Deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investments
Total Assets
Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Participants' sub - funds
(as per statement attached)
Contingencies and Commitments

Number of Units in Issue

Net Asset Value per Unit

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.

Saqib Matin
Chief Financial Officer

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

DW@ 7
Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
Chief Executive Officer
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Note 2021
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub Money
quity Sub- ebt Sub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
-------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------==-=-emmmmeeeaen
4 1,388 10,644 7,282 19,314
5 158,342 133,182 122,901 414,425
6 704 1,019 23 1,746
7 2,624 254 1,475 4353
980 - - 980
164,038 145,099 131,681 440,818
8 479 440 397 1,316
9 24 19 18 61
10 35 29 29 93
11 1,051 253 172 1,476
1,589 741 616 2,946
162,449 144,358 131,065 437872
162,449 144,358 131,065 437872
12
------------------ Number of units -------=----enn--—-
13 908,979 771,725 875,505
Rupees
178.7160 187.0593 149.7020
Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Director
AABL Asset Management
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ABL PENSION FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2022
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub- Money
Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
Income B Rupees in '000 ----------m--mmmmermmeme e
Interest / profit earned 16 504 14,962 13,590 29,056
Dividend income 9,064 - - 9,064
Loss on sale of investments - net (16,383) (798) (5) (17,186)

Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement
of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss' - net 5.5 (10,964) 216 22 (10,726)
Total (Loss) / Income (17,779) 14,380 13,607 10,208
Expenses
Remuneration of ABL Asset Management Company Limited

- Pension Fund Manager 8.1 2,122 2,381 2,163 6,666
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Pension Fund

Manager 8.2 340 381 346 1,067
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan

Limited - Trustee 9.1 212 238 216 666
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 9.2 28 31 28 87
Annual fees to the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan 10.1 52 59 54 165
Auditors' remuneration 15 67 67 67 201
Securities transaction cost 1,157 54 - 1,211
Legal and professional charges 93 91 93 277
Printing charges 33 33 33 99
Settlement and bank charges 504 12 14 530
Total Operating Expenses 4,608 3,347 3,014 10,969
Reversal of Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 11.1 630 169 88 887
(Loss) / Income for the Year before Taxation (21,757) 11,202 10,681 126
Taxation 3.6 - - - R
Net (Loss) / Income for the Year (21,757) 11,202 10,681 126
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - R
Total Comprehensive (Loss) / Income for the Year (21,757) 11,202 10,681 126
Earnings / (Loss) per Unit 311

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

~
Sa(‘iib Matin Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
MUSTAGBIL
PENSION NUNT AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential
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ABL PENSION FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2021
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub- Money
Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------nmmmeeeeeeeeeeeeeen

Income
Interest / profit earned 16 405 9,867 8,498 18,770
Dividend income 6,441 - - 6,441
Gain / (Loss) on sale of investments - net 34,553 (1,737) (275) 32,541
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement

of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss' - net 5.5 6,898 11 14 6,923
Total Income 48,297 8,141 8,237 64,675
Expenses
Remuneration of ABL Asset Management Company Limited

- Pension Fund Manager 8.1 2,099 1,713 1,751 5,563
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Pension Fund

Manager 82 336 274 280 890
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan

Limited - Trustee 9.1 209 171 175 555
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 9.2 27 22 23 72
Annual fees to the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan 10.1 35 29 29 93
Auditors' remuneration 15 60 60 60 180
Securities transaction cost 1,088 3 - 1,091
Legal and professional charges - - - -
Printing charges 25 25 25 75
Settlement and bank charges 83 7 15 105
Total Operating Expenses 3,962 2,304 2,358 8,024
Income for the Year before Taxation 44,335 5,837 5,879 56,051
Taxation 3.6 - - - -
Net Income for the Year 44,335 5,837 5,879 56,051
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 44,335 5,837 5,879 56,051

Earnings / (Loss) per Unit 3.11
The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

7
Sa('iib Matin Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
MUSTAGBIL
PENSION NUNT AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential
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ABL PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net Assets at the Beginning of the Year
Issuance of units
Redemption of units

Loss on sale of investments - net

Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement
of Investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' - net

Other income for the year - net

Total Comprehensive (Loss) / Income for the Year

Net Assets at the End of the Year

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

i

(Pension Fund Manager)

Z)WN 7

Saqib Matin
Chief Financial Officer

Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
Chief Executive Officer

Page 18

2022
. Money
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
Rupees in '000
162,449 144,358 131,065 437,872
8,326 42,296 59,491 110,113
(48,615) (46,390) (41,667) (136,672)
(40,289) (4,094) 17,824 (26,559)
(16,383) (798) ) (17,186)
(10,964) 216 22 (10,726)
5,590 11,784 10,664 28,038
(21,757) 11,202 10,681 126
100,403 151,466 159,570 411,439
Pervaiz Iqgbal Butt
Director
AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential




ABL PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net Assets at the Beginning of the Year

Issuance of units
Redemption of units

Gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement
of Investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' - net

Other income for the year - net

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Net Assets at the End of the Year

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.

Saqib Matin
Chief Financial Officer

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

DMM 7

Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
Chief Executive Officer

Page 19
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2021
. Money
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
Rupees in '000
99,611 123,321 116,062 338,994
41,110 51,284 57,614 150,008
(22,607) (36,084) (48,490) (107,181)
18,503 15,200 9,124 42,827
34,553 (1,737) (275) 32,541
6,898 11 14 6,923
2,384 7,563 6,140 16,587
44,335 5,837 5,879 56,051
162,449 144,358 131,065 437,872
Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Director
AABL Asset Management




ABL PENSION FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2022
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub Money
quity Sub- ¢ ub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund

Rupees in '000 ----------cmmememeemmeeee e
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / income for the year before taxation (21,757) 11,202 10,681 126
Adjustments for:
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement

of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss' - net 10,964 (216) (22) 10,726
Interest / profit earned (504) (14,962) (13,590) (29,056)
Dividend income (9,064) - - (9,064)

(20,361) (3,976) (2,931) (27,268)

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Deposits and other receivables (32) (158) 1,180 990
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities

Payable to ABL Asset Management Company

Limited - Pension Fund Manager 99) 13 44 (42)
Payable to Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited - Trustee (10) 1 4 5)
Payable to the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan 17 30 25 72
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (823) (161) (80) (1,064)

(915) (117) (7) (1,039)

Interest / profit received 565 15,801 13,467 29,833
Dividend received 9,685 - - 9,685
Net amount received / (paid) on purchase and sale of investments 55,088 (19,541) (31,981) 3,566
Net cash Generated from / (Used in) operating activities 44,030 (7,991) (20,272) 15,767
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units 8,326 42,296 59,491 110,113
Payments against redemption of units (48,615) (46,390) (41,667) (136,672)
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities (40,289) (4,094) 17,824 (26,559)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,741 (12,085) (2,448) (10,792)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,388 54,040 64,771 120,199
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 5,129 41,955 62,323 109,407

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

(Pension Fund Manager)

Lo Dol

Sa(‘iib Matin Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
oo Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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ABL PENSION FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement
of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' - net

Interest / profit earned

Dividend income

(Increase) / decrease in assets
Deposits and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager

Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Interest / profit received

Dividend received

Net amount (paid) / received on purchase and sale of investments
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units

Payments against redemption of units

Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Financing Activities
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

The annexed notes 1 to 25 and annexure form an integral part of these financial statements.
For ABL Asset Management Company Limited

(Pension Fund Manager)

DMM 7

Saqib Matin
Chief Financial Officer

Alee Khalid Ghaznavi
Chief Executive Officer

Note 2021
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub Money
quity Su evtSu Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
Rupees in '000 ---
44,335 5,837 5,879 56,051
(6,898) 11 (14) (6,923)
(405) 9,867) (8,498) (18,770)
(6,441) - - (6,441)
30,591 (4,041) (2,633) 23,917
(2,500) (111) (1,421) (4,032)
96 25 16 137
10 2 2 14
9 1 1) 9
249 (4) (4) 241
364 24 13 401
367 9,594 8,476 18,437
6,093 - - 6,093
(55,298) 25,433 431 (29,434)
(20,383) 30,899 4,866 15,382
41,110 51,284 57,614 150,008
(22,607) (36,084) (48,490) (107,181)
18,503 15,200 9,124 42,827
(1,880) 46,099 13,990 58,209
3,268 7,941 50,781 61,990
1,388 54,040 64,771 120,199
Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Director
AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential




ABL PENSION FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1
Legal Status And Nature Of Business

ABL Pension Fund (the Fund) is an open ended mutual fund constituted under a Trust Deed entered into on March 19, 2014 between ABL Asset Management Company Limited as the Pension Fund Manager
and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The offering document of the Fund has been revised through the First, Second and Third Supplements dated January 26, 2015,
February 11, 2015 and March 24, 2016 with the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) authorised constitution
of the Fund as a Pension Fund dated July 7, 2014 in accordance with the requirements of the Voluntary Pension Scheme Rules, 2005.

The Pension Fund Manager of the Fund has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension Scheme Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules) through a certificate of registration issued by SECP.
The registered office of the Pension Fund Manager is situated at Plot No. 14, Main Boulevard, DHA Phase 6, Lahore.

1.1 The units of the Fund are offered to the public for subscription on a continuous basis. The units are non-transferable except in the circumstances mentioned in the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and can
be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund. Further, as per the Offering Document, the Fund shall not distribute any income or dividend from the Fund whether in cash or otherwise from any of the Sub-
Funds.

1.2 The objective of the Fund is to provide a secure source of savings and retirement income to individuals. It is a portable pension scheme allowing individuals the flexibility of contributions and portfolio customisation

through allocation of such contributions in equity and fixed income investment avenues suited to their specific needs and risk profile.
1.3 The title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee of the Fund.

1.4 The Fund comprises of three sub-funds namely, ABL Pension Fund Equity Sub-Fund (Equity Sub-Fund), ABL Pension Fund Debt Sub-Fund (Debt Sub-Fund) and ABL pension Fund Money Market Sub-Fund
(Money Market Sub-Fund) (collectively the "Sub-Funds"). Investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows:

ABL Pension Fund - Equity Sub-Fund

Assets of an Equity Sub-Fund shall be invested in equity securities which are listed on the Stock Exchange or in securities of which the application for listing has been approved by the Stock Exchange. At least
ninety percent (90%) of Net Assets of an Equity Sub-Fund shall remain invested in listed equity securities based on rolling average investment of last ninety days calculated on daily basis. Investments may be
made in equity securities of any single company up to ten percent (10%) of net assets of an Equity Sub-Fund or paid-up capital of that single company, whichever is lower. The Pension Fund Manager may invest
up to thirty percent (30%) of net assets of equity sub-fund or the Index Weight, whichever is higher; subject to maximum thirty five percent (35%) of net assets of Equity Sub-Fund in equity securities of companies
belonging to a single sector as classified by the Stock Exchange. The Pension Fund Manager may invest any surplus (un-invested) funds in government securities having less than one year time to maturity or
keep as deposits with scheduled commercial banks which are rated not less than "A" by a rating agency registered with SECP. The Pension Fund Manager shall not deposit more than ten per cent (10%) of Net
Assets of the Equity Sub-fund in a single bank.

ABL Pension Fund - Debt Sub-Fund

The Debt Sub-Fund shall comprise of debt securities and such other assets as specified herein below. The weighted average time to maturity of securities held in the portfolio of a Debt Sub-Fund, excluding
government securities, shall not exceed five (5) years. At least twenty five per cent (25%) Net Assets of the Debt Sub-Fund shall be invested in governement securities not exceeding 90 days' maturity or deposit
with scheduled commercial banks having not less than "A plus" rating. Exposure to securities issued by companies of a single sector shall not exceed twenty five percent (25%). Deposits in a single bank shall
not exceed ten per cent (10%) of Net Assets of the Debt Sub-Fund. Investments may be made in debt securities of any single company up to ten percent (10%) of net assets of a Debt Sub-Fund or issue size of
that debt security, whichever is lower.

ABL Pension Fund - Money Market Sub-Fund

The weighted average time to maturity of net assets of a Money Market Sub-Fund shall not exceed one year. Time to maturity of any asset in the portfolio of Money Market Sub-Fund shall not exceed six (6)
months. There shall be no limit with respect to investment in the Federal Government securities. Investments may be made in debt securities of any single company up to ten percent (10%) of net assets of a Money
Market Sub-Fund or issue size of that debt security, whichever is lower. At least ten per cent (10%) Net Assets of the Money Market Sub-Fund shall be invested in debt securities issued by the Federal Government
or keep as deposits with scheduled commercial banks which are rated not less than "AA" by a rating agency registered with the Commission.

1.5 The Fund offers four types of allocation schemes, as prescribed by SECP under VPS Rules 2005 vide its Circular no. 36 of 2009 dated December 10, 2009, to the participants of the Fund, namely High Volatility,
Medium Volatility, Low Volatility and Lower Volatility. The participant has an option to suggest a minimum percentage of allocation to the above allocation schemes (subject to the minimum percentages prescribed
in the offering document). Based on the minimum allocation, the Funds are allocated to the above stated Sub-Funds. The allocation to the sub-funds has to be done at the date of the opening of the participant's
pension account and on an anniversary date thereafter.

ABL e
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1.6 During last year, the Trust Act, 1882 has been repealed due to promulgation of provincial trust acts as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan. Various new requirements
including registration and annual renewal requirements under the relevant trust acts have been introduced. The Management Company in consultation with MUFAP and the Trustee is currently deliberating upon
the requirements of the newly enacted provincial trust acts and their implication on the Fund.

Note 2
Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and
- Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules) and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the VPS rules and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the VPS rules and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) that are mandatory for the Fund's annual accounting period beginning on
July 1, 2021. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Fund's operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

2.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective:
The following amendments to published accounting and reporting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective amendments:

Effective date (accounting
Standards, interpretations and amendments periods beginning on or after)

- TAS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements' (amendment) January 1, 2023

- IAS 8 - "Accounting policies, change in accounting
estimates and errors' (amendment) January 1, 2023

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendmens to IAS 1
and IFRS practice statement 2 January 1, 2023

The Management is currently in the process of assessing the full impact of these amendments on the financial statements of the Fund.

2.3.1 There are certain other standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period beginning on or after July 1, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Fund's operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

24 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if
the revision affects both current and future years.
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The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Fund relate to classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 3.2 and 5), provision for taxation (note 3.6) and
provision for Federal Excise Duty (note 8.3).

2.5 Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments have been carried at fair values.
2.6 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which
is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

Note 3
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been applied consistently to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
31 Cash and cash equivalents
These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
3.2 Financial assets
3.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement
3.2.1.1 Debt instruments
TFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securities are either classified at:
- amortised cost
- fair value through other comprehensive income "(FVOCI)"
- fair value through profit or loss "(FVPL)"
based on the business model of the entity.
However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose performance is measured on a fair value basis, to be recognised at FVPL. The debt sub-fund and
money market sub-fund primarily invest in debt securities and their performance is measured on a fair value basis. Hence, the management has classified the debt securities invested through debt sub-fund and
money market sub-fund as FVPL.

3.2.1.2 Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective and are instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer's net assets.

All equity investments are required to be measured in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in the Income Statement, except where an irrevocable election has
been made at the time of initial recognition to measure the investment at FVOCI. The equity sub-fund is required to invest at least 90 percent of its assets in equity securities and the management has not opted
for the irrevocable option. Therefore, the equity sub-fund investments in equity securities are being classified as FVPL.

The dividend income for equity securities classified under FVPL is recognised in the Income Statement.
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3.22 Impairment

The Fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets (other than debt instruments) carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Fund recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
3.2.2.1 Impairment on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP and based on management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by
the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager in accordance with the guidelines issued by SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Pension Fund Manager may make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum provision requirement prescribed by SECP, in accordance with the provisioning
policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.

323 Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases / sales of assets require delivery
of securities within two days from the transaction date as per the stock exchange regulations.

3.24 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets
carried 'at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are recognised in the Income Statement.

3.25 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets is taken to the Income Statement.

33 Financial liabilities
3.3.1 Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost.

3.3.2 Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Statement.
34 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.6 Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57 (3) (viii) of the Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A (i) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
3.7 Revenue recognition
- Gains / (losses) on sale of investments is recorded in the Income Statement on the date on which the transaction takes place.
- Profit on savings account with banks is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' are recorded in the period in which these arise.
- Income on sukuk certificates, term finance certificates, and government securities is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective yield method.
3.8 Expenses
All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager and Trustee and annual fee of SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.
3.9 Issue, allocation, reallocation and redemption of units
Contribution received in the individual pension account after deduction of applicable front end fee is used to purchase the units of sub-funds of the pension fund according to the allocation scheme selected by
the participant. The units are allotted at the net asset value notified by the Pension Fund Manager at the close of the business day for each sub-fund on the date on which funds are actually realised against application.
The front end fee is payable to the distributors and the Pension Fund Manager.
The Pension Fund Manager makes reallocation of the sub-fund units between the sub-funds at least once a year to ensure that the allocation of the sub-fund units of all the participants are according to the allocation
schemes selected by the participants. In case of withdrawal before retirement, units are redeemed at the net asset value of each of the Sub-Fund as of the close of the business day on which such request is received
by the distributor before the cut off time. Redemption of units is recorded on acceptance of application for redemption.

In case of retirement of the participant, units are redeemed at the net asset value of each of the sub-fund as of the close of the business day on which retirement age is reached.

A participant can transfer his individual pension account with the Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manger or from one pension fund to another pension fund. Units are redeemed at the net asset
value of each of the sub-fund as of the close of the business day corresponding to the date of change specified by the participant in accordance with the VPS Rules.

3.10 Net asset value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit for each sub-fund, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the net assets of the sub-fund by the number of units in issue of the respective
sub-fund at the reporting date.

3.1 Earnings / (loss) per unit

Earnings / (loss) per unit is calculated by dividing the net income / (loss) of the year after taxation of each sub-fund by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the year for the respective sub-
fund.

Earnings / (loss) per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.
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3.12 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.

Note 4
Bank Balances 2022
Note : | _ Money
Equity Subq) Debt Sub- {1, et Sub]|  Total
Fund Fund
Fund
--------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------—----——-
Balances with banks in savings accounts 4.1 5,129 41,955 37,989 85,073
2021
. Money
Equity Subq| Debt Sub- {1, ) et Sub{|  Total
Fund Fund
Fund
--------------------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------------——-
Balances with banks in savings accounts 4.1 1,388 10,644 7,282 19,314
4.1 This includes a balance of Rs 3.078 million (2021: Rs 1.190 million), Rs 8.892 million (2021: Rs 9.219 million) and Rs 4.669 million (2021: Rs 5.947 million) in Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money

Market Sub-Fund respectively maintained with Allied Bank Limited (a related party) that carries profit at the rate of 11.75% (2021: 5.00%) per annum. Other savings accounts of the Fund carry profit rates ranging
from 11.75% to 16.65% (2021: 5.50% to 6.30%) per annum.

Note 5
Investments
Note 2022
] Money
Equity Sub{| Debt Sub- 1|, . Sub{| Total
Fund Fund
Fund

--------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------mmmm---
At fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities 5.1 93,267 - - 93,267
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills 5.2 - 94,951 121,749 216,700

Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 53 - - - -
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates 5.4 - 14,592 - 14,592
93,267 109,543 121,749 324,559

Note 2021
Equity Sub{| Debt Sub- || MoneY
Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund

--------------------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------------—--
At fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities 5.1 158,342 - - 158,342
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills 52 - 70,684 122,901 193,585
Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds 53 - 46,758 - 46,758
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates 5.4 - 15,740 - 15,740
158,342 133,182 122,901 414,425
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5.1 Equity Sub-Fund - Listed equity securities
Ordinary shares having face value of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise.
Market value as a percentage of
Purchases during Bonus /right Sales during the| As at June 30, | Carrying value as | Market value as ag:rr::i:::ieodn/ perg‘:ll:l;;f oafspaaid-
Name of the Investec Company AsatJuly1, 2021 the year shares received year 2022 at June 30,2022 | at June 30,2022 | (diminution) as Total market Net assets of |up capital of Investee
during the year value of
at June 30,2022 the Sub-Fund Company
investments
---------------- Number of shares held----------------—--— - Rupees in '000 --------- Y%
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Habib Bank Limited 95,795 82,400 - 104,000 74,195 8,649 6,777 (1,872) 727% 6.75% 0.05%
MCB Bank Limited 2219 22,000 - 24219 - - - -
Allied Bank Limited - 22,000 - 22,000 - - - - - - -
Bank Alfalah Limited 900 342,000 - 226,000 116,900 4,146 3,741 (405) 4.01% 3.73% 0.02%
Bank Al Habib Limited - 9,000 - 1,500 7,500 571 435 (136) 0.47% 0.43% 0.00%
Meezan Bank Limited 48,237 12,000 4235 29,000 35472 3,870 4,008 138 4.30% 3.99% 0.02%
United Bank Limited 120,500 22,000 - 86,500 56,000 7,139 6,335 (804) 6.79% 6.31% 0.05%
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 40,000 - - 40,000 - - - - -
24375 21,296 (3,079) 22.84% 21.21%
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited 41,000 22,000 - 63,000 - - - -
Nishat Chunian Limited 25,000 20,000 - 45,000 - - - -
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited - 15,000 - 15,000 - - - -
The Crescent Textile Mills Limited - 115,000 - 115,000 - - - - - - .
Interloop Limited 90,000 10,000 2,400 57,000 45,400 3,138 2,769 (369) 2.97% 2.76% 0.03%
Nishat Mills Limited - 66,800 - 48,800 18,000 1,575 1,330 (245) 1.43% 1.32% 0.04%
4,713 4,099 (614) 4.400% 4.0800%
CEMENT
Cherat Cement Company Limited 16,000 131,000 - 137,000 10,000 1,010 930 (80) 1.00% 0.93% 0.05%
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited - 11,000 - 11,000 - - - - - - -
Fauji Cement Company Limited - 400,000 - 275,000 125,000 1,893 1,771 (122) 1.90% 1.76% 0.01%
Kohat Cement Limited 12,200 49,500 - 23,500 38,200 7,003 4971 (2,032) 5.33% 4.95% 0.25%
Lucky Cement Limited 12,520 17,800 - 23,520 6,800 4,129 3,121 (1,008) 3.35% 3.11% 0.10%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 95,000 213,000 - 175,001 132,999 4,736 3,638 (1,098) 3.90% 3.62% 0.03%
Pioneer Cement Limited 52,000 98,000 - 150,000 - - - - -
18,771 14,431 (4,340) 15.48% 14.37%
OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Hascol Petroleum Limited 567 - - - 567 5 2 3) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 9,169 51,500 - 45,996 14,673 2,354 2,521 167 2.70% 2.51% 0.05%
Attock Petroleum Limited - 4,700 - 4,700 - - - - - - -
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 80,000 64,000 - 80,000 64,000 2,107 2,189 82 2.35% 2.18% 0.03%
Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited - 65,000 - 65,000 - - - - -
4,466 4712 246 5.05% 4.69%
Balance carried forward 52,325 44,538 (7,787)
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Market value as a percentage of
Purchases during Bonus / right Sales during the| As at June 30, | Carrying value as | Market value as all)J;:ee:iE:iec:l/ perg(:lltdai;eg oafs paaid-
Name of the Investee Company AsatJuly 1, 2021 the year shal:es received year 2022 ’ at June 30,2022 | at June 30,2022 | (diminution) as Total market Net assets of |up capital of Investee
during the year at June 30,2022| | value of the Sub-Fund Company
investments
-------------- Number of shares held------------------- - Rupees in '000 ---—---— Y%
Balance brought forward 52,325 44,538 (7,787)
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 7,347 360 - 2,300 5,407 8,328 9,407 1,079 10.09% 9.37% 0.71%
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited 156,651 46,000 - 150,000 52,651 4,870 4,142 (728) 4.44% 4.13% 0.01%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited - 21,300 - 13,300 8,000 3,208 3,246 38 3.48% 3.23% 0.11%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 131,782 166,000 - 188,500 109,282 8,005 7378 (1,287) 791% 1.35% 0.03%
25,071 24,173 (898) 25.92% 24.08%
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
The Hub Power Company Limited 78,860 103,000 - 80,000 101,860 7,528 6,944 (584) 745% 6.92% 0.05%
Kot Addu Power Company 58,000 - - 58,000 - - - - -
K-Electric Limited 50,000 - - 50,000 - - - - -
7,528 6,944 (584) 7.45% 6.92%
CABLE & ELECTRICAL GOODS
Waves Singer Pakistan Limited 45,000 115,500 - 160,500 -
INSURANCE
IGI Holdings Limited - 20,000 - 20,000 - - - - -
CHEMICALS
Descon Oxychem Limited 580 - - - 580 16 9 (7 0.01% 0.01% 0.00%
Ittehad Chemical Limited 500 - 90 - 590 19 18 (1) 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Nimir Resins Limited 500 250 - 500 250 10 4 (6) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited 110,699 25,000 - 135,699 -
Ghani Global Holdings Limited - 90,000 - 90,000 - - - - - - -
1.C.I. Pakistan Limited 50 - - - 50 LX) 36 (7 0.04% 0.04% 0.00%
88 67 (21) 0.07% 0.07%
AUTOMOBIE ASSEMBLER
Millat Tractors Limited 1,963 - - 1,963 - - - - - - -
Agri tech Li mi ted - 200,000 - - 200,000 1,131 1,330 199 1.43% 1.32% 0.03%
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited 214 - 64 - 278 36 17 (19) 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Ghandhara Industries Limited - 5,000 - 5,000 - - - - -
Ghandhara Nissan Limited - 9,000 - 9,000 - - - - - - -
Panther Tyres Limited - 35,000 - 3,000 32,000 1,156 1,037 (119) 1.11% 1.03% 0.06%
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 3,500 6,400 - 9,900 - - - - - - -
2,323 2,384 61 2.5600% 2.3700%
Balance carried forward 87,335 78,106 9,229)
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Market value as a percentage of
Purchases during Bonus / ight Sales during the| As at June 30, | Carrying value as | Market value as a:)J:rreecaiLl:iTn/ perg:(:llt‘:ll;eg :fs paaid-
Name of the Investee Company Asat July 1, 2021 the year shafes received year 2022 ’ at June 30,2022 | at June 30,2022 | (diminution) as Total market Net assets of |up capital of Investee
during the year at June 30,2022| . value of the Sub-Fund Company
investments
-------------- Number of shares held-------------------—- - Rupees in '000 - Yo
Balance brought forward 87,335 78,106 9,229)
FERTILIZER
Engro Fertilizers Limited - 190,600 - 175,600 15,000 1,340 1,330 (10) 1.43% 1.32% 0.01%
Engro Corporation Limited 3,380 24,500 - 14,000 14,380 4,166 3,697 (469) 3.96% 3.68% 0.06%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 15,000 141,000 - 156,000 -
5,506 5,027 (479) 5.39% 5.00%
PHARMACEUTICALS
The Searle Company Limited 882 12,000 264 12,200 946 122 103 (19) 0.11% 0.10% 0.00%
IBL HealthCare Limited 15,000 - 3,000 18,000 -
Citi Pharma Limited - 42,500 - 42,500 - - - - -
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare - 12,000 - 11,200 800 219 191 (28) 0.20% 0.19% 0.02%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 1,045 - 8 965 88 48 47 1) 0.05% 0.05% 0.01%
389 341 (48) 0.36% 0.34%
MISCELLANEOUS
Shifa International Hospitals Limited 100 - 2 - 102 22 18 4) 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Synthetic Products Enterprises Limited 1,443 3,116 115 1,558 3,116 62 44 (18) 0.05% 0.04% 0.00%
84 62 (22) 0.07% 0.06%
FOOD & PERSONAL CARE PRODUCTS
At-Tahur Limited *** 605 170,000 2472 122,500 50,577 1414 965 (449) 1.03% 0.96% 0.05%
Vanaspati & Allied
Unity Foods Limited 45,000 - - 45,000 -
ENGINEERING
International Steels Limited 15,000 25,000 - 40,000 - - - - - - -
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited 500 - - - 500 {9 21 (21 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Mughal Iron and Steel Industries Limited 18,760 71,700 1314 91,000 774 75 45 (30) 0.05% 0.04% 0.00%
Aisha Steel Mills Limited 168,000 - - 168,000 -
117 66 (51) 0.07% 0.06%
Balance carried forward 94,845 84,567 (10,278)
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Market value as a percentage of
Purchases during Bonus / right Sales during the| As at June 30, | Carrying value as | Market value as aE;rreecaig:;:ﬂ per:(:llt‘:\i;eg (?fspaaid-
Name of the Investee Company AsatJuly 1, 2021 the year shafes received year 2022 ’ at June 30,2022 | at June 30,2022 | (diminution) as Total market Net assets of |up capital of Investee
during the year atJune30,2022) YA | Gub-Fund | Company
investments
-------------- Number of shares held--------------------- - Rupees in '000 --------- Y%
Balance brought forward 94,845 84,567 (10,278)
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
NetSol Technologies Limited - 65,000 - 65,000 - - - - - - -
Avanceon Limited - 91,500 - 78,500 13,000 978 1,013 35 1.09% 1.01% 0.03%
Hum Network Limited - 665,000 - 570,000 95,000 703 676 27 0.72% 0.67% 0.07%
Octopus Digital Limited - 57,074 - 57,074 - - - - - - -
Systems Limited - 24,514 6,414 24,600 6,328 2,271 2,087 (184) 2.24% 2.08% 0.07%
TRG Pakistan Limited 25,000 30,000 - 55,000 - - - - - - -
3,952 3,776 (176) 4.05% 3.7600%
GLASS & CERAMICS
Ghani Glass Limited - 90,000 - 90,000 - - - - - - -
Tariq Glass Industries Limited - 28,000 - 28,000 - - - - - - -
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited - 90,000 - - 90,000 1,508 1317 (191) 1.41% 1.31% 0.11%
1,508 1317 (191) 1.41% 1.3100%
REFINERY
Attock Refinery Limited 16,000 50,000 - 51,500 14,500 2382 2,549 167 2.73% 2.54% 0.24%
National Refinery Limited - 28,700 - 28,700 - - - - - - -
2,382 2,549 167 2.73% 2.54%
LEATHER & TANNERIES
Service Industries Limited 1,000 2,000 - - 3,000 1,544 1,058 (486) 1.13% 1.05% -
PAPER & BOARD
Century Paper and Board Mills Limited - 30,000 - 30,000 - - - - - - -
TRANSPORT
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation - 25,000 - 25,000 - - - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2022 104,231 93,267 (10,964) 100.00% 92.87%
Total as at June 30, 2021 151,444 158,342 6,398 100.00% 97.51%
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5.1.1 The Finance Act, 2014 introduced amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as a result of which companies are liable to withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. The shares so withheld shall
only be released if the Fund deposits tax equivalent to five percent of the value of the bonus shares issued to the Fund including bonus shares withheld, determined on the basis of day-end price on the first day of
closure of books of the issuing company.

In this regard, a constitutional petition had been filed by Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) through their Trustees in the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding tax provisions on
bonus shares received by CISs. The petition was based on the fact that because CISs are exempt from deduction of income tax under Clause 99 Part I to the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001,
the withholding tax provision should also not be applicable on bonus shares received by CISs. A stay order had been granted by the High Court of Sindh (HCS) in favour of CISs.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Court of Pakistan passed a judgement on June 27, 2018 whereby the suits which are already pending or shall be filed in future must only be continued / entertained
on the condition that a minimum of 50 percent of the tax calculated by the tax authorities is deposited with the authorities. Accordingly, CISs were required to pay minimum 50% of the tax calculated by the tax
authorities for the case to remain continued. The CISs failed to deposit the minimum 50% of the tax liability and accordingly the stay got vacated automatically during the year ended June 30, 2019. During the
year ended June 30, 2020, CISs filed a fresh constitutional petition via CP 4653 dated July 11, 2019 in the Honourable High Court of Sindh. In this regard, on July 15, 2019, the Honourable High Court of Sindh
issued notices to the relevant parties and ordered that no third party interest on bonus shares issued to the Funds in lieu of their investments be created in the meantime. The matter is still pending adjudication
and the Funds have included these shares in their portfolio, as the management is confident that the decision of the constitutional petition will be in favour of CISs.

Further, the Finance Act, 2018 effective from July 1, 2018 has omitted Section 236M of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 that required every company quoted on stock exchange issuing bonus shares to the shareholders
of the company, to withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. Therefore, bonus shares issued to the Fund during the year were not withheld by the investee companies.

As at June 30, 2022, the following bonus shares of the Fund have been withheld by certain companies at the time of declaration of bonus shares.

2022 1 2021

Bonus shares
Name of the Company Number of Market value as Number of Market value as
shares at June 30, 2022 shares at June 30, 2021

Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000

The Searle Company Limited 441 48 339 68
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 173 30 173 27
Hascol Petroleum Limited 567 2 567 8
80 103

5.1.2 The above investments include shares of the following companies which have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan for guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular
no. 11 of 2007 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The details of shares which have been pledged are as follows:

As at June 30, 2022 As at June 30, 2021
Name of the Company Number of Rupees in '000 Number of Rupees in '000
shares shares
Habib Bank Limited 45,000 4,110 45,000 5,507
Lucky Cement Limited - - 5,500 4,749
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 3,000 5,219 3,000 4,573
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited 45,000 3,540 45,000 4,276
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 45,000 3,038 45,000 3,907
United Bank Limited 45,000 5,091 45,000 5,499
183,000 20,998 188,500 28,511
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5.2 Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills
5.2.1 Debt Sub - Fund
Face value (Rupees in '000) Rupees in '000
Purchased Di dof/ c . | U - Market value as a | Market value as a
seatauy 1, | P | ot | atune, | T st s | TS| e ot | perenge o
2021 uring ured during 2022 €S0 | at June 30, 2022 | PPreciatt assets investments
year the year 2022 (Diminution)
JEY VA
3 Months 44,000 113,000 157,000 - - - - - -
6 Months 28,000 408,035 414,035 22,000 21,757 21,780 23 14.38% 19.88%
12 Months - 181,850 100,000 81,850 73,173 73,171 ?2) 48.31% 66.80%
Total as at June 30, 2022 103,850 94,930 94,951 21 62.69% 86.68%
Total as at June 30, 2021 72,000 70,673 70,684 11 48.96% 53.07%
5.2.2 Money Market Sub - Fund
3 Months 58,000 516,000 549,000 25,000 24,320 24,334 14 15.25% 19.99%
6 Months 58,000 211,000 167,000 102,000 97,407 97,415 8 61.05% 80.01%
12 Months 9,210 - 9,210 - - - - - R
Total as at June 30, 2022 127,000 121,727 121,749 22 76.30% 100.00%
Total as at June 30, 2021 125,210 122,887 122,901 14 93.77% 100.00%
5.3 Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds
5.3.1 Debt Sub - Fund
Face value (Rupees in '000) Rupees in '000
A . ) Market value as a | Market value as a
Issue date Tenor As at July 1, Pur‘chased Disposed Of,/ As at June 30, Carrying value Market value as l.Im"eall.sed percentage of net | percentage of total
during the matured during as at June 30, (diminution) / .
2021 2022 at June 30, 2022 . . assets investments
year the year 2022 appreciation
%
August 5, 2021 3 years - 125,000 125,000 - - - - - -
October 15,2020 5 years 50,000 230,000 280,000 - - - - - -
December 15, 2020 10 years - 50,000 50,000 - - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2022 - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2021 46,885 46,758 (127) 32.39% 35.11%
53.2 This carries purchase yield of 9.29% per annum and is due to mature on October 15, 2025.
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5.4

Term finance certificates and Sukuks

Debt Sub Fund
Percentage in
relation to
AsatJulyl, (l;llll:icnha:;z redi:estilons As at June 30, v(;::):sn ft I:s[ i:;lflel::: 13“03 aj U:::?ah:ieil / Total market
Name of the security Maturity date Profit rate 2021 g . P 2022 ’ pl.l Lo Net Assets of
year during the year June 30, 2022 2022 (diminu-tion) value of
the Sub-Fund| .
investments
-------------- Number of certificates-------------- --------------- Rupees in '000 %
FERTILIZER
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited July 11,2026 3 months KIBOR 10 - - 10 1,021 1,070 49 0.71% 0.98%
Sukuk (AA, PACRA, traded) plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 100,000 per certificate) 0.90%
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited Sukuk November 28, 6 months KIBOR 89 - 89 - - - - - -
(AA-, PACRA, non-traded) 2021 plus base rate
(Face value of Rs 500 per certificate) 1.10%
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Meezan Bank Limited - Tier II Sukuk September 22, 6 months KIBOR 2 - 2 - - - - - -
(AA, VIS, non-traded) 2026 plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 1,000,000 per certificate) 0.50%
JS Bank Limited TFC December 14, 6 months KIBOR 300 - 300 - - - - - -
(A+, PACRA, traded) 2023 plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 4,991 per certificate) 1.40%
JS Bank Limited TFC December 28, 6 months KIBOR - 35 - 35 3,499 3,571 72 2.36% 3.26%
(A+, PACRA, traded) 2028 plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 99,980 per certificate) 2.00%
U Microfinance Bank Limited TFC June 23,2025 6 months KIBOR 25 - - 25 2,500 2,500 - 1.65% 2.28%
(AA-, PACRA) plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 100,000 per certificate) 1.35%
The Bank of Punjab TFC December 23, 6 months KIBOR 35 - - 35 3,527 3,506 21) 2.31% 3.20%
(AA-, PACRA, non-traded) 2026 plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 99,820 per certificate) 1.00%
Balance carried forward 10,547 10,647 100
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Percentage in
relation to
Asaduy 1 | s during | A5 10 |t dune 3, sppreinion! Total mark
. . s - otal market
Name of the security Maturity date Profit rate 2021 vear the year 2022 June 30, 2022 2022 (diminu-tion) Net Assets of value of
the Sub-Fund| .,
investments
Number of certificates-------——---- | = ceeeeeeeeeeme Rupees in '000 %
Balance brought forward 10,547 10,647 100
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
The Hub Power Company Limited Sukuk August 22, 3 months KIBOR 50 - 25 25 3,850 3,945 95 2.60% 3.60%
(AA+, PACRA, non-traded) 2023 plus base rate of
(Face value of Rs 100,000 per certificate) 1.90%
Total as at June 30, 2022 14,397 14,592 195 9.63% 13.32%
Total as at June 30, 2021 15,613 15,740 127 10.89% 11.83%
2022
. Money
Eq:,ltdeUb Dert S(l;b_ Market Sub- Total
Note un un Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------—---—-——-—~
Market value of investments 5.1,52,53&54 93,267 109,543 121,749 324,559
Less: carrying value of investments 5.1,52,53&54 104,231 109,327 121,727 335,285
(10,964) 216 22 (10,726)
2021
. Money
Equity Sub) Debt Sub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------—-----—-——-—~
Market value of investments 5.1,52,53,54 158,342 140,008 122,901 421,251
Less: carrying value of investments 5.1,52,53,54 151,444 139,997 122,887 414,328
6,898 11 14 6,923
Note 6
Dividend and Profit Receivable 2022
. Money
Equity Suby Debt Sub- Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------—---—-——-—~
Interest receivable on:
Bank balances 1 54 146 201
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - -
Sukuk certificates and term finance certificates - 126 - 126
1 180 146 327
Dividend receivable 21 - - 21
22 180 146 348
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2021

. Money
Equity Subi| Debt Sub- - 1 ot Sub-||  Total
Fund Fund
Fund

------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------—-—~
Interest receivable on:

Bank balances 62 30 23 115
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 789 - 789
Sukuk certificates and term finance certificates - 200 - 200
62 1,019 23 1,104
Dividend receivable 642 - - 642
704 1,019 23 1,746
Note 7 Note 2022
Deposits and Other Receivables . Mone
b Equity Suby Debt Sub- Market Syub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------—-——-.
Security deposit with:
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited * 100 100 - 200
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 - - 2,500
2,600 100 - 2,700
Balance in Investor Portfolio Securities (IPS) account * - 99 11 110
Advance tax 7.1 56 213 284 553
2,656 412 295 3,363
2021
. Mone,
Equity Subj| Debt Sub- || %Y |l
Fund Fund
Fund
------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------—-—--.
Security deposit with:
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited * 100 100 - 200
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 - - 2,500
2,600 100 - 2,700
Balance in Investor Portfolio Securities (IPS) account * - 32 1,246 1,278
Advance tax 7.1 24 122 229 375
2,624 254 1,475 4,353
* related party balances
7.1 As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to collective investment schemes (CISs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150.

However, withholding taxes on dividend, interest on bank balances and interest on debt securities paid to the Fund were deducted by various withholding agents based on the interpretation issued by FBR vide
letter C. no. 1(43) DG (WHT)/2008-VOL.11-66417-R dated May 12, 2015 which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a valid exemption certificate under section
159(1) issued by the concerned Commissioner of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced before him by the withholdee. The aggregate tax withheld on dividends, interest on bank balances and interest on debt
securities amounts to Rs 0.553 million (2021: Rs 0.375 million).

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of various mutual funds (including the Funds being managed by the Pension Fund Manager) had filed a petition in the Honourable
Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the above mentioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the SHC in favour of FBR. A petition was filed in the Supreme Court of
Pakistan by the Funds together with other CISs (managed by the Pension Fund Manager and other Asset Management Companies) whereby the Supreme Court granted the petitioners leave to appeal from the
initial judgment of the SHC. Pending resolution of the matter, the amount of withholding taxes deducted on dividends, interest on bank balances and interest on debt securities have been shown as other receivable
as at June 30, 2022 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at source will likely be refunded.
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Note 8 Note 2022

Payable To ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Pension Fund Manager
v & pany & Equity Sub- || Debt sub- || MomeY
Market Sub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund

-------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------—-—-———.

Remuneration payable to the Pension Fund Manager 8.1 121 182 193 496
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Pension
Fund Manager 8.2 19 29 31 79
Provision for Federal Excise Duty and Related Sindh Sales
Tax on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager 8.3 240 242 217 699
380 453 441 1,274
Note 2021
. Mone,
Equity Sub- i Debt Sub- Market Syub- Total
Fund Fund
Fund
-------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------=-----=--—-.
Remuneration payable to the Pension Fund Manager 8.1 206 171 155 532
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the Pension
Fund Manager 8.2 33 27 25 85
Provision for Federal Excise Duty and Related Sindh Sales
Tax on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager 8.3 240 242 217 699
479 440 397 1,316
8.1 In accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, the Pension Fund Manager is entitled to remuneration for its services by way of an annual management fee not exceeding 1.50% (2021: 1.50%) of net assets

of each Sub-Fund calculated on daily basis. The Pension Fund Manager has charged its remuneration at the rate of 1.50% of daily net assets of the Sub-Funds. The remuneration is payable to the Pension Fund
Manager monthly in arrears.

8.2 During the year, an aggregate amount of Rs 1.067 million (2021: 0.890 million) was charged on account of sales tax on the management fee levied through the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012 at the rate
of 16% (2021: 16%).

8.3 The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration
of the Pension Fund Manager and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013. The Pension Fund Manager was of the view that since the remuneration was already subject to provincial sales tax,
further levy of FED would result in double taxation which did not appear to be the spirit of the law. Hence, on September 4, 2013 a constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Pension
Fund Manager together with various other asset management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing in services subject to provincial sales tax were withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of rendering
or providing services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme
Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager with effect from July 1, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution
the provision for FED made for the period from August 20, 2014 till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs 0.240 million, Rs 0.242 million and Rs 0.217 million has been retained for Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund
and Money Market Sub-Fund respectively in these financial statements as the matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. Had the provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Equity
Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund as at June 30, 2021 would have been higher by Re. 0.3585 (2021: Re. 0.2640), Re. 0.3207 (2021: Re. 0.3136) and Re. 0.2189 (2021: Re. 0.2479) per unit
respectively.
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9.1

9.2

10.1

Note 9

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - Related Party

Trustee fee payable

Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee fee

Trustee fee payable

Sindh Sales Tax payable on trustee fee

Note

9.1
9.2

9.1
9.2

2022
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Money Market Total
Fund Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000
12 18 19 49
2 2 3 7
14 20 22 56
2021
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Money Market Total
Fund Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000
21 17 16 54
3 2 2 7
24 19 18 61

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Sub-Funds under the provisions of the Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein which is charged in proportion to the net assets
of the pertinent Sub-Fund at the following rates:

Net assets (Rs.)

Fee

- up to Rs. 1,000 million

Rs. 0.3 million or 0.15% per annum of net assets, whichever is higher

- exceeding Rs 1,000 million and upto Rs 3,000 million

Rs. 1.5 million plus 0.10% per annum of net assets on amount exceeding Rs 1,000

million

- exceeding Rs 3,000 million and upto Rs 6,000 million

Rs. 3.5 million plus 0.08%% per annum of net assets on amount exceeding Rs 3,000

million

- exceeding Rs 6,000 million

Rs. 5.9 million plus 0.06% per annum of net assets on amount exceeding Rs 6,000

million

During the year, an aggregate amount of Rs 0.087 million (2021: Rs 0.072 million) @ 13% (2021: 13%) was charged on account of sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee levied through Sindh Sales Tax on

Services Act, 2011.

Note 10

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Annual fee payable

Annual fee payable

Note

10.1

2022
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Money Market Total
Fund Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000
52 59 54 165
2021
Equity Sub- Debt Sub- Money Market Total
Fund Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000
35 29 29 93

In accordance with the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, each sub-fund is required to pay annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the SECP vide SRO No. 1620(1)/2019 dated December 24, 2019, revised the rate of annual fee to one fortieth of one percent (0.025%) of average annual net assets of the
Fund, applicable on all Voluntary Pension Schemes. Previously, the rate of annual fee applicable to Voluntary Pension Schemes was one thirtieth of one percent (0.033%) of average annual net assets of the Fund.
Accordingly, the Fund has charged SECP fee at the following rates:
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Rate applicable for the year ended June 30, 2022

Rate applicable from July 1,
2021 to August 22, 2021

Rate applicable from August 23,
2021 to June 30, 2022

0.04% of average annual net assets

0.025% of average annual net

0.04% of average annual net

assets assets
Note 11
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities Note Equity Sub-]| Debt Sub- 20;[20“), Market
Fund Fund Sub-Fund Total
Rupees in '000 ------------mnmmmmmmeememm
Auditors' remuneration payable 67 67 67 201
Brokerage fee payable 136 - - 136
Printing charges payable 25 25 25 75
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 11.1 - - - -
228 92 92 412
2021
Equity Sub- || Debt Sub- || Money Market Total
Fund Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000 ------------=--mm-memmemmem
Auditors' remuneration payable 59 59 59 177
Brokerage fee payable 337 - - 337
Printing charges payable 25 25 25 75
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 11.1 630 169 88 887
1,051 253 172 1,476

11.1 The Fund made provision for SWWF from May 21, 2015 till June 30, 2017 amounting to Rs 0.630 million, Rs 0.169 million and Rs 0.088 million for Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-
Fund respectively. The Fund has not made any provision for SWWF after July 1, 2017 as the registered office of the Management Company of the Fund had been relocated from the Province of Sindh to the
Province of Punjab.

During the current year, SRB through its letter dated August 12, 2021 intimated MUFAP that the mutual funds do not qualify as Financial Institutions / Industrial Establishments and are therefore, not liable to
pay the SWWF contributions. MUFAP in an emergent meeting held on August 13, 2021 discussed this development with its members and it has been decided by MUFAP that CISs are no longer required to retain
this provision. Considering the nature and operation of CIS the provision was reversed on August 13, 2021. MUFAP took up the matter for reversal of the entire provision (created during the period from May
21,2015 to June 30, 2017) on August 13, 2021 with the SECP that gave its concurrence for the reversal of provision for SWWF.

Note 12
Contingencies and Commitments

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

Note 13
Number of Units in Issue
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Total units in issue at the beginning of the year
Add: Issuance of units during the year

Less: Units redeemed during the year

Total units in issue at the end of the year

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year
Add: Issuance of units during the year

Less: Units redeemed during the year

Total units in issue at the end of the year

Note 14
Contribution Table

Individuals

Individuals

Note 15
Auditors' Remuneration

Annual audit fee
Punjab sales tax on audit fee
Out of pocket expenses

Annual audit fee
Sindh sales tax on audit fee
Out of pocket expenses

2022

Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
wmemememememememem=——--Number of units in issue
908,979 771,725 875,505 2,556,209
51,520 218,601 379,793 649,914
(291,121) (235,637) (264,129) (790,887)
669,378 754,689 991,169 2,415,236
2021
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
+mmmmmmmmmmmmmee————--Number of units in issue-------------------m--.
788,431 693,779 814,975 2,297,185
254,353 279,153 398,082 931,588
(133,805) (201,207) (337,552) (672,564)
908,979 771,725 875,505 2,556,209
2022
Equity Sub+und Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub+und
Units | [Rupees in '000 Units | [Rupees in '000 Units | [Rupees in '000
51,520 8,326 218,601 42,296 379,793 59,491
2021
Equity Sub+und Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub+und
Units | [Rupees in '000] Units | [Rupees in '000] Units | [Rupees in '000
237,503 33,317 231,841 38,312 384,730 50,579
2022
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund || Sub-Fund Sub-Fund o

Rupees in '000 ———---m-mmmmmeememeeem

58 58 58 174
3 3 3 9
6 6 6 18
67 67 67 201
2021
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Rupees in '000 ———---m--m-mmmeemeeeemm

50 50 50 150
4 4 4 12
6 6 6 18

60 60 60 180
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Note 16 2022
Interest / Profit Earned
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000 -—-------—-—-—-—m .
Interest / profit on:
Savings accounts 504 1,009 1,015 2,528
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates - 1,631 - 1,631
Government securities - Market treasury bills and
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 11,929 12,575 24,504
Islamic commercial papers - 393 - 393
504 14,962 13,590 29,056
2021
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000 --------------mmemememeemm.
Interest / profit on:
Savings accounts 405 506 435 1,346
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates - 1,249 - 1,249
Government securities - Market treasury bills and
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 7,675 8,063 15,738
Commercial papers - 437 - 437
405 9,867 8,498 18,770
Note 17 2022
Cash and Cash Equivalents Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Note Rupees in '000 -----------mmmmemememeeeem
Bank balances 4 5,129 41,955 37,989 85,073
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 5.2 - - 24,334 24,334
5,129 41,955 62,323 109,407
2021
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Rupees in '000 -—-—-----—-—-—-—mm .
Bank balances 1,388 10,644 7,282 19,314
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills - 43,396 57,489 100,885
1,388 54,040 64,771 120,199
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Note 18
Transactions With Connected Persons / Related Parties

18.1 Connected persons include ABL Asset Management Company Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, other collective investment schemes
managed by the Pension Fund Manager, any entity in which the Pension Fund Manager, its CISs or their connected persons have material interest, any person or company beneficially owning directly or indirectly
ten percent or more of the capital of the Pension Fund Manager or the net assets of the Fund, directors and their close family members and key management personnel of the Pension Fund Manager.

18.2 Transactions with connected persons are executed on an arm's length basis and essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing the affairs of the Fund, other charges and distribution
payments to connected persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance with market rates.

18.3 Remuneration to the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, 2005.

18.4 Remuneration to the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, 2005 and the Trust Deed.

18.5 The details of transactions carried out by the Fund with connected persons during the year and balances with them as at the reporting date are as follows:

2022
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Rupees in '000 ----------------mmmmmmmmmm
Pension Fund Manager
Remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager 2,122 2,381 2,163 6,666
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Pension Fund Manager 340 381 346 1,067
Outstanding 300,000 units - Equity Sub-Fund 44,998 - - 44,998
Outstanding 300,000 units - Debt Sub-Fund - 60,210 - 60,210
Outstanding 300,000 units - Money Market Sub-Fund - - 48,297 48,297
2022
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Rupees in '000 ----------=--m-mmmmmmmeme e
Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trustee 212 238 216 666
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 28 31 28 87
Allied Bank Limited
Interest on savings account 403 207 129 739
Bank charges 46 - 11 57
Interest receivable on savings account - - - -
Chief Executive Officer
Outstanding 9,850 units - Equity Sub-Fund 1,477 - - 1,477
Outstanding 2,682 units - Debt Sub-Fund - 538 - 538
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2021
Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
ABL Asset Management Company Limited - Rupees in '000 ----------—-—-———m .
Pension Fund Manager
Remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager 2,099 1,713 1,751 5,563
Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Pension Fund Manager 336 274 280 890
Outstanding 300,000 units - Equity Sub-Fund 53,615 - - 53,615
Outstanding 300,000 units - Debt Sub-Fund - 56,118 - 56,118
Outstanding 300,000 units - Money Market Sub-Fund - - 44,911 44911
Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee 209 171 175 555
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 27 22 23 72
Allied Bank Limited
Interest on savings account 369 178 126 673
Bank charges 33 3 4 40
Interest receivable on savings account 61 14 3 78
Chief Executive Officer
Outstanding 9,850 units - Equity Sub-Fund 1,760 - - 1,760
Outstanding 2,682 units - Debt Sub-Fund - 502 - 502
18.6 Other balances due to / from related parties / connected persons are included in the respective notes to the financial statements.
Note 19
Financial Instruments by Category
2022
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund
Particulars At At fair value At At fair value At At fair value Total
amortised | through profit | Sub total amortised | through profit | Sub total amortised | through profit | Sub total
cost or loss cost or loss cost or loss
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 5,129 - 5,129 41,955 - 41,955 37,989 - 37,989 85,073
Investments - 93,267 93,267 - 109,543 109,543 - 121,749 121,749 324,559
Dividend and interest receivable 22 - 22 180 - 180 146 - 146 348
Deposits and other receivables 2,600 - 2,600 199 - 199 11 - 11 2,810
Receivable against sale of investments 3 - 3 - - - - - - 3
7,754 93,267 101,021 42,334 109,543 151,877 38,146 121,749 159,895 412,793
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 380 - 380 453 - 453 441 - 441 1,274
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 14 - 14 20 - 20 22 - 22 56
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 228 - 228 92 - 92 92 - 92 412
622 - 622 565 - 565 555 - 555 1,742
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2021
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund
Particulars At At fair value At At fair value At At fair value Total
amortised | through profit | Sub Total amortised | through profit | Sub Total amortised | through profit | Sub Total
cost or loss cost or loss cost or loss
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 1,388 - 1,388 10,644 - 10,644 7,282 - 7,282 19,314
Investments - 158,342 158,342 - 133,182 133,182 - 122,901 122,901 414,425
Dividend and interest receivable 704 - 704 1,019 - 1,019 23 - 23 1,746
Deposits and other receivables 2,600 - 2,600 132 - 132 1,246 - 1,246 3,978
Receivable against sale of investments 980 - 980 - - - - - - 980
5,672 158,342 164,014 11,795 133,182 144,977 8,551 122,901 131,452 440,443
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 479 - 479 440 - 440 397 - 397 1,316
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 24 - 24 19 - 19 18 - 18 61
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 421 - 421 84 - 84 84 - 84 589
924 - 924 543 - 543 499 - 499 1,966
Note 20

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Fund’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of participants’ value. Risk is inherent in the Fund’s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily
set up to be performed based on limits established by the Pension Fund Manager, the constitutive documents of the Fund and the regulations and directives of SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and
market environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager supervises the overall risk management approach within
the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

20.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
The Pension Fund Manager manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio and by following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Committee.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, yield / interest rate risk and price risk.

@) Yield / interest rate risk
Yield / interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2021, the Fund is exposed to such
risk on bank balances, investments in term finance and sukuk certificates, market treasury bills, Pakistan investment bonds and commercial papers. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio
of the Fund on a regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

(a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Presently, the Fund holds KIBOR based term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and bank balances which expose the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in

applicable rates on the last repricing date with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and net assets of the Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund would have been
higher / lower by Rs 0.051 million (2021: Rs. 0.014 million), Rs 0.565 million (2021: Rs 0.264 million) and Rs 0.380 million (2021: Rs 0.073 million) respectively.
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(b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
As at June 30, 2021, the Fund holds market treasury bills and Pakistan investment bonds which are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' exposing the Fund to fair value interest rate
risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in rates announced by the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan for market treasury bills and Pakistan investment bonds and with all other variables held
constant, the net income for the year and net assets of the Debt Sub-Fund and Money Marker Sub-Fund would have been lower / higher by Rs 0.950 million (2021: Rs 1.174 million) and Rs 1.217 million (2021:
Rs 1.229 million) respectively.
Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date.
ABL Pension Fund - Debt Sub-Fund 2022 2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed 0 Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed
Effective interest | Upto | More than three More than | yield / interest Total ' Effective Upto three More than three More than | _ to yield / Total
rate three  [months and up to . interest rate months and up to| interest rate
one year rate risk months one year .
months one year one year risk
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 11.75% - 16.60% | 41,955 - - - 41,955 | 5.00% - 6.30% 10,644 - - - 10,644
Investments 15.00% - 17.32% [ 21,780 87,763 - - 109,543 | 7.28%-9.29% 59,136 27,288 46,758 - 133,182
Dividend and interest receivable - - - 180 180 - - - 1,019 1,019
Deposits and other receivables - - - 199 199 - - - 132 132
63,735 87,763 - 379 151,877 69,780 - - 1,151 144,977
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager - - - 453 453 - - - 440 440
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 20 20 - - - 19 19
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 92 92 - - - 84 84
- - - 565 565 - - - 543 543
On-balance sheet gap 63,735 87,763 - (186) 151,312 69,780 - - 608 144,434
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 63,735 87,763 - 69,780 - -
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 63,735 151,498 151,498 69,780 69,780 69,780
ABL Pension Fund - Money Market Sub-Fund
2022 2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed f Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed
ive i t More than th i More than th i
Effective interest | Upto ore than three More than | yield / interest Total . Effective Upto three ore than three More than | , to yield/ Total
rate three  [months and up to X interest rate months and up to interest rate
one year rate risk months one year A
months one year one year risk
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 11.75% - 16.60% | 37,989 - - - 37,989 [ 5.00% - 6.30% 7,282 - - - 7,282
Investments 14.80%- 15.15% | 54,034 67,715 - - 121,749 | 7.24% - 7.56% 57,489 65,412 - - 122,901
Dividend and interest receivable - - - 146 146 - - - 23 23
Deposits and other receivables - - - 11 11 - - - 1,246 1,246
92,023 67,715 - 157 159,895 64,771 - - 1,269 131,452
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2022 2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed 0 Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed
Effective interest | Upto | More than three More than | yield / interest Total ‘ Effective Upto three More than three More than | _ to yield / Total
rate three |months and up to . interest rate months and up to interest rate
one year rate risk months one year A
months one year one year risk
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Financial liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager - - - 441 441 - - - 397 397
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 22 22 - - - 18 18
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 92 92 - - - 84 84
- - - 555 555 - - - 499 499
On-balance sheet gap 92,023 67,715 - (398) 159,340 64,771 - - 770 130,953
Total interest rate sensitivity gap 92,023 67,715 - 64,771 - -
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 92,023 159,738 159,738 64,771 64,771 64,771
(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign
currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund is exposed to equity price risk on investments held by the Fund and classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Fund
diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks prescribed in the Trust Deed and the VPS Rules, 2005.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in KSE Index (KSE 100) on June 30, 2021, with all other variables held constant, the total comprehensive income / loss of the Equity Sub-Fund for the year would decrease /
increase by Rs 4.663 million (2021: Rs 7.917 million) and the net assets of the Fund would increase / decrease by the same amount as a result of gains / losses on equity securities classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

The analysis is based on the assumption that equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation
with the index. This represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE 100 Index having regard to the historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Fund's investment
portfolio and the correlation thereof to the KSE 100 Index is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2022 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's
net assets of future movements in the level of the KSE 100 Index.

202 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the
Fund.

The Fund is exposed to redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis. The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets either in short term instruments or in investments that are traded in an
active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable in order to maintain liquidity.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests
qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did
not withhold any redemptions during the year.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. However, assets and liabilities that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been included in the maturity grouping of one month.
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Equity Sub-Fund 2022
e More than one [ More than three | More than one . Financial
Within 1 More than | instruments
month and upto |months and upto| year and upto . Total
month 5 years with no fixed
three months one year five years .
maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 5,129 - - - - - 5,129
Investments - - - - - 93,267 93,267
Dividend and interest receivable 22 - - - - - 22
Deposits and other receivables - - - - - 2,600 2,600
Receivable against sale of investments 3 - - - - - 3
5,154 - - - - 95,867 101,021
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 380 - - - - - 380
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 14 - - - - - 14
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 161 67 - - - - 228
555 67 - - - - 622
Net Financial Assets 4,599 (67) - - - 95,867 100,399
2021
Financial
. More than one |More than three | More than one .
‘Within 1 More than | instruments
month and upto [months and upto| year and upto . Total
month 5 years with no fixed
three months one year five years .
maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 1,388 - - - - - 1,388
Investments - - - - - 158,342 158,342
Dividend and interest receivable 704 - - - - - 704
Deposits and other receivables - - - - - 2,600 2,600
Receivable against sale of investments - - - - - 980 980
2,092 - - - - 161,922 164,014
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 479 - - - - - 479
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 24 - - - - - 24
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 362 59 - - - - 421
865 59 - - - - 924
Net Financial Assets 1,227 (59) - - - 161,922 163,090
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Debt Sub-Fund 2022
Within 1 More than one | More than three | More than one More th . Fltnanclalt
month and upto |[months and upto| year and upto ore than "}s ruments Total
month P ptoyy P 5 years with no fixed
three months one year five years y maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 41,955 - - - - - 41,955
Investments 21,780 - 73,171 14,592 - - 109,543
Dividend and interest receivable 180 - - - - - 180
Deposits and other receivables 99 - - - - 100 199
64,014 - 73,171 14,592 - 100 151,877
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 453 - - - - - 453
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 20 - - - - - 20
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 25 67 - - - - 92
498 67 - - - - 565
Net Financial Assets 63,516 (67) 73,171 14,592 - 100 151,312
2021
Financial
Within 1 More than one | More than three | More than one More than | instruments
month month and upto [months and upto| year and upto S vears ith no fixed Total
three months one year five years ¥ W maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 10,644 - - - - - 10,644
Investments - 43,396 28,743 57,006 4,037 - 133,182
Dividend and interest receivable 1,019 - - - - - 1,019
Deposits and other receivables 32 - - - - 100 132
11,695 43,396 28,743 57,006 4,037 100 144,977
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 440 - - - - - 440
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 19 - - - - - 19
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 25 59 - - - - 84
484 59 - - - - 543
Net Financial Assets 11,211 43,337 28,743 57,006 4,037 100 144,434
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Money Market Sub-Fund 2022
Financial
. More than one | More than three | More than one .
Within 1 More than | instruments
month and upto [months and upto| year and upto . Total
month 5 years with no fixed
three months one year five years .
maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 37,989 - - - - - 37,989
Investments 29,700 24,334 67,715 - - - 121,749
Dividend and interest receivable 146 - - - - - 146
Deposits and other receivables 11 - - - - - 11
67,846 24,334 67,715 - - - 159,895
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 441 - - - - - 441
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 22 - - - - - 22
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 25 67 - - - - 92
488 67 - - - - 555
Net Financial Assets 67,358 24,267 67,715 - - - 159,340
2021
Financial
e More than one | More than three | More than one .
Within 1 More than | instruments
month and upto |months and upto| year and upto . Total
month 5 years with no fixed
three months one year five years .
maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Bank balances 7,282 - - - - - 7,282
Investments - 57,489 65,412 - - - 122,901
Dividend and interest receivable 23 - - - - - 23
Deposits and other receivables 1,246 - - - - - 1,246
8,551 57,489 65,412 - - - 131,452
Financial Liabilities
Payable to ABL Asset Management Company
Limited - Pension Fund Manager 397 - - - - - 397
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan - Trustee 18 - - - - - 18
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 25 59 - - - - 84
440 59 - - - - 499
Net Financial Assets 8,111 57,430 65,412 - - - 130,953
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20.3 Credit risk
20.3.1  Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to discharge its obligation as it falls due. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure
to credit risk:
Equity Sub-Fund 2022 2021
Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum
statement of statement of
assets and expos‘ur? to assets and expos‘ur? to
liabilities credit risk liabilities credit risk
Rupees in '000
Bank balances 5,129 5,129 1,388 1,388
Investments 93,267 - 158,342 -
Dividend and interest receivable 22 22 704 704
Deposits and other receivables 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Receivable against sale of investments 3 - 980 -
101,021 7,751 164,014 4,692
Debt Sub-Fund
Bank balances 41,955 41,955 10,644 10,644
Investments 109,543 14,592 133,182 15,740
Dividend and interest receivable 180 180 1,019 1,019
Deposits and other receivables 199 199 132 132
151,877 56,926 144,977 27,535
Money Market Sub-Fund
Bank balances 37,989 37,989 7,282 7,282
Investments 121,749 - 122,901 -
Dividend and interest receivable 146 146 23 23
Deposits and other receivables 11 11 1,246 1,246
159,895 38,146 131,452 8,551
0 The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2022 is the carrying amount of the financial assets other than investment in equity securities, investment in government securities

and receivable against sale of equity securities.

20.3.2  Credit quality of financial assets

The Fund's significant credit risk (excluding credit risk relating to settlement of equity securities) arises mainly on account of its placements in banks and mark-up accrued thereon and investments in sukuk
certificates and commercial papers. The credit rating profile of balances with banks and investment in debt securities is as follows:

2022
Rating % of financial assets exposed to credit risk
Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Bank Balances
AAA 3.07% 5.88% 2.94%
AA+ 2.04% 21.88% 20.83%
A+ - 0.00% 0.00%
AA- - - 0.02%
ABL "
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2022
% of financial assets exposed to credit risk

Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates
AA+ - 2.60% -
AA- - 4.67% -
A+ - 2.36% -
5.11% 37.39% 23.79%
2021
% of financial assets exposed to credit risk
Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Bank Balances
AAA 0.77% 6.38% 4.54%
AA+ 0.12% 0.98% 0.98%
AA- - - 0.03%
A+ - - 0.01%
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates
AA+ - 3.52% -
AA - 2.13% -
AA- - 4.18% -
A+ - 1.02% -
0.89% 18.21% 5.56%

Note 21
Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between
carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to be
significantly different from the respective book values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:
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At fair value through profit or loss 2022
Level 1 || Level 2 || Level 3 || Total

Equity Sub-Fund e Rupees in '000----—--—--—--—-———
Listed equity securities 93,267 - 93,267
Debt Sub-Fund
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills - 94,951 - 94,951
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates - 14,592 14,592

- 109,543 - 109,543
Money Market Sub-Fund
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills - 121,749 - 121,749

2022
Levell ||  Level2 ||  Leveld | Total

Equity Sub-Fupd e Rupees in '000---------m-momememeeeee
Listed equity securities 158,342 - - 158,342
Debt Sub-Fund
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills - 70,684 - 70,684
Government Securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds - 46,758 - 46,758
Term finance certificates and sukuk certificates - 15,740 - 15,740

- 133,182 - 133,182
Money Market Sub-Fund
Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills - 122,901 122,901

Note 22
Participants' Sub-Fund Risk Management

The Participants' Fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to payment of a proportionate share, based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemption date.
The Fund has no restrictions on the subscription and redemption of units. There is no specific capital requirement which is applicable to the Fund.

The Fund's objectives when managing funds received are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for participants and to maintain a strong base to meet
unexpected losses or opportunities.

In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests. Such
liquidity being augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of investments where necessary.

All units, including the core units, and fractions thereof represent an undivided share in the pertinent sub-funds of the Fund and rank parri passu as their rights in the net assets and earning of the sub-fund are not
tradable or transferable. Each participant has a beneficial interest in the sub-fund proportionate to the units held by such participant in such sub-fund.

Note 23
Corresponding Figures

Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and to conform with changes in presentation in
the current year. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.
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Note 24
Date of Authorisation for Issue

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager on August 24, 2022.

Note 25
General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupee unless otherwise stated.

For ABL Asset Management Company Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

Ll Do

Sa(‘iib Matin Alee Khalid Ghaznavi Pervaiz Iqbal Butt
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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PENSION FUND AABL Asset Management

Discover the potential
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